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IMPORTANT INFORMATION

CONTACT INFORMATION
Office Location & Hours:
2 Greens Pond Rd Merrimack, NH 03054
Monday — Friday 8:00 AM - 4:30 PM
Phone: 603-424-9241 Fax: 603-424-0563

Email: customerservice@mvdwater.ore Website: www.mvdwater.oro

The MVD website, www.mvdwater.org, is perpetually updated and provides a vast amount of information

for all MVD customers, including: MVD By-Laws, Rate & Fee Schedule, Water Quality, Calendar &
Maintenance Schedules, Appointment Scheduling, Public/Legal Notices, and more.

Stay informed - follow us on Facebook and subscribe to email notifications for announcements &

notices, watering restriction updates, flushing notices, and more.

New Year’s Day

2021 MVD HOLIDAYS
Friday, January 1*

Martin Luther King, Jr./Civil Rights Day Monday, January 18"

President’s Day Monday, February 15"
Memorial Day Monday, May 31*
Independence Day (observed) Monday, July 5*

Labor Day Monday, September 6™

Veterans Day
Thanksgiving
Christmas (observed)

Thursday, November 11"
Thursday, November 25" & Friday, November 26"
Friday, December 24"

Annually/Bi-Annually

Monthly

Yearly: April - October

Yearly: By June 30th

Yearly: February

Yearly: March

Yearly: May

Year-Round

DATES TO REMEMBER
(Subject to change due to COVID-19)

Backflow Device Testing
Commercial and Industrial Businesses.

Board of Commissioner Meeting - 3rd Monday of each Month
Holidays may affect date of meeting - Check MV'D Calendar for updates.

Water System Flushing
Notices posted on MV/D's website and Facebook page.

CCR - Water Quality Report
Notification mailed and posted on MV'D's Facebook page. Report available on M1 D's website.

Public Hearing
Check MV'D Calendar for date, time and location.

Annual Meeting
Check MV'D Calendar for date, time and location.

Hydrant Maintenance
Additional information available on M1/D's Maintenance Program webpage

Odd/Even Watering Restriction
Check MV'D's website and Facebook page for detailed information and updates.
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ABOUT MERRIMACK VILILAGE DISTRICT

New Hampshire Statutes — RSA 52:
Village Districts — Defined as a Municipal entity within a town that
holds a separate budgetary meeting and has a Board of
Commissioners as its governing body.

Merrimack Village District Water Works (MVD) was established and is regulated in
accordance with the provisions of the State of New Hampshire RSA 52 Law as
Amended.

MVD is governed by a five-member Board of Commissioners (BOC). In addition,
there are Officers elected for the positions of Clerk, Treasurer, and Moderator. The
registered voters of Merrimack elect MVD’s BOC and Officers for their terms at the
Annual Meeting held in March.

MVD manages over 7,500 service locations, which is more than 87% of the town.

These locations include residential, municipal, commercial and industrial properties.

MVD services and maintains 930,800 feet of water mains, 930 fire hydrants, six wells
(4 active/2 inactive), three water storage tanks, an Iron & Manganese Treatment
Plant, three Booster Stations and a PFAS Treatment Plant.

MISSION STATEMENT

“The Merrimack Village District will develop, operate and maintain
our water system in a cost-effective manner.”

Revised and Adopted by the Board of Commissioners = September 16, 2013
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ELECTED OFFICIALS

Merrimack Village District (MVD) is governed by a five member Board of Commissioners
(BOC). In addition to the BOC, there are District Officer positions for Clerk, Treasurer, and
Moderator, as well as an Administrative appointment for Recording Secretary. Officials are
elected by the Town of Merrimack’s registered voters during MVD’s Annual Meeting. Each
Commissioner, the District Clerk, and the Treasurer serve 3-year terms and the Moderator
serves for a 2-year term.

Elected Officials meet monthly and/or at the call of the Chair.

COMMISSIONERS

Chairman: Donald (“Don’’) Provencher

Don was elected to the Board in 2018. Don holds a master’s degree in Civil & Geo-environmental
Engineering and is a registered professional civil engineer in NH and MA. Don owns and operates
Provencher Engineering, LLILC, which is located here in town and specializes in water supply,

wastewater and civil engineering projects.
(Current Term Ending 2021)

Vice Chairman: Wolfram (“Wolf’) von Schoen

Wolf was elected to the Board in 2018. Wolf holds a master’s degree in Mechanical & Automation
Engineering. Wolf has served in various executive positions of manufacturing & industrial service
companies, running large-scale capital equipment installation & maintenance operations.

(Current Term Ending 2021)

Personnel Liaison: John Lyons
John was elected in 2020. He is the President of Granite State Analytical, LLLC, which performs

water testing. He is also a Grade I Distribution & Treatment Certified Water Operator.
(Current Term Ending 2023)

Kenneth (“Ken”) Ayers

Ken was elected to the Board in 2019. Ken holds an associate degree in Criminal Justice and he is
working on a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration. Ken works in Tubing Fabrication &
Assembly at General Electric in Hooksett, NH.

(Current Term Ending 2022)

Paul McLaughlin
Paul was elected in 2020. Paul holds an associate degree in Mechanical Engineering and working
to complete his bachelor's degree in Political Science. Paul works in bio-pharmaceuticals,

manufacturing treatments for rare diseases.
(Current Term Ending 2023)

ELECTED OFFICERS

Moderatot: District Clerk: Treasuret:

Marc Nozell Jill Lavoie Kathryn Stack

(Current Term Ending 2023) (Current Term Ending — 2023) (Current Term Ending — 2021)
ADMINISTRATIVE

Recording Secretary:

Amanda McKenna
(No Term — Not an Elected Position)
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DISTRICT STAFF

ADMINISTRATIVE
Superintendent: Ron Miner, Jr
Business Manager/Water Quality Specialist: Jill Lavoie
Finance & Human Resources Director: Michele Holton
Senior Accountant: Kristen Maher
Customer Service & Billing: Amy Doucette
Office Assistant: Michelle Thompson

FIELD STAFF

MVD has two Field Staff Departments, Treatment & Distribution.
Both departments perform a variety of duties to maintain and distribute the water supply.

Field Staff Operations Manager: David Fredrickson

Construction Inspector: Stephen (“Steve”) Chase

TREATMENT
Foreman: Brian Hieken
Sr. Utility Treatment Technician: James (“Skip”’) Colburn
Sr. Utility Treatment Technician: Daniel (“Dan”) St. Pierre
DISTRIBUTION
Foreman: James (“Jim”) Young
Sr. Utility Field Technician: Edward (“Ed”) Lambert
Sr. Utility Field Technician: Heinz Smith
Utility Field Technician: Jacob (“Jake”) Howe
Utility Field Technician: John Foss
Utility Field Technician: Dan Steagald
Utility Field Technician: James Filipowich
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MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT
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Merrimack Village District Extends a Sincere
“Thank You’

For 9 Years of Dedicated Service as Commissioner

Joseph “Joe” Comer
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ﬂ MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT

In memory of Richard “Dick” Hinch for his longstanding dedication to
the Merrimack community, his devotion to the citizens of New
Hampshire, his support of legislation to improve the state’s water
quality, and most of all, for his unwavering support of
Merrimack Village District.

Richard “Dick” Hinch

May 1, 1949 — December 9, 2020

=y 9

“...clean drinking water is fundamental for New Hampshire

citizens”
— House Republican Leader Dick Hinch
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2020 Employee Service Recognition

Stephen Chase
Ronald Miner
Daniel St. Pierre
James Colburn
Edward Lambert
Heinz Smith
Jill Lavoie
Brian Hieken
David Fredrickson
Amy Doucette
Michele Holton
Michelle Thompson
Jacob Howe
Jim Young

John Foss

~ THANK YOU FOR YOUR SERVICE AND DEDICATION ~
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SPECIAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

i
WATER HEROES

The past year has provided ample challenges to everyday life to which the water
industry has certainly not been exempt.

The crisis of the coronavirus pandemic has revealed the critical nature and true
value of reliable water services.

Because of MVD's outstanding employees, we have been able to continue daily
operations throughout the entire pandemic.

All of MVD's employees have always been, and will always be, essential workers
who play a vital role in providing water service to the community.

As we close out this fiscal year, we give a very big thank you to our devoted team
whose work is often performed behind the scenes and largely unseen to the public.

~ THANKYOU ~

"Ensuring that all Americans have clean and safe water is a bhigh priority for the agency and I
want to thank the water sector for their courageonus efforts at a time when workforces are being
challenged and stretched. .. Having fully operational drinking water and wastewater services is
critical to containing COVID-19 and protecting Americans from other public health risks. Our
nation's water and wastewater employees are everyday heroes who are on the frontline of protecting
human health and the environment every single day."

— Andrew Wheeler, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Administrator
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WATER SOURCE

100% of Merrimack water comes from groundwater. Groundwater is precipitation that
has soaked through the ground’s surface and is stored where there are open spaces
between rocks and soil. This water is pumped from wells located in various parts
of Merrimack and Hollis. Water from each well is treated on-site at each pumping
station or treatment plant and distributed through a network of water mains to
homes, businesses and schools.

Many people think of groundwater as underground lakes or rivers.
Groundwater, however, is simply water that is stored beneath the earth’s surface
within the spaces between rocks and sand or between fractures in bedrock. When
enough water beneath the surface is present in a usable quantity, we call this an
aquifer. Compared to water in rivers and streams, groundwater moves very, very
slowly.

Groundwater, like all water on earth, comes from precipitation-rain and snow-
which percolates through the soil until it reaches the zone of saturation. At this
point, the water moves toward sites of groundwater discharge, such as lakes, local
springs and oceans.

Groundwater Guardian Community Since 1999 - Merrimack has been awarded
the official Groundwater Guardian status from the National Groundwater
Foundation in Lincoln, Nebraska since 1999. This program recognizes communities
who are dedicated and committed to local groundwater protection to ensure a safe
water supply for the future of the community. Merrimack is the only town in New
Hampshire awarded this status.

For more information, please contact:

Merrimack Village District
www.mvdwater.org

603-424-9241

New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services
www.des.state.nh.us

603-271-3503

US Environmental Protection Agency, Region 1
www.epa.gov/regionl
888-372-7341

EPA Safe Drinking Water Hotline
800-426-2791

US Center for Disease Control (CDC)
800-311-3435

www.cdc.gov
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WATER SOURCE PROTECTION

A protected drinking water source, combined with proper water quality monitoring,
treatment, maintenance and distribution, is necessary to provide clean, safe water.

MVD participates in the NH Department of Environmental Services’ (NHDES)
Drinking Water Source Protection Program to ensure the water sources remain safe.
Each of the wells have an established “Sanitary Protective Radius”; a radius around the
well that is required by law to be controlled by MVD through ownership or easements.
In addition to the Sanitary Protective Radius, MVD’s wells also have an established
“Wellhead Protection Area” as delineated by the NHDES. Having the Sanitary
Protective Radius and Wellhead Protection Areas allows MVD to monitor, regulate,
and prevent any activities that could potentially be harmful to wells and the water they
produce.

To assist in protecting water sources please review the information below and visit the
United States Environmental Protection Agency’s web page, “Preventing
Contamination of Drinking Water Resources” at

https://www.epa.gov/priveatewells/protect-your-homes-water and the NHDES
Drinking Water Source Protection Program web page at
https://www.des.nh.gov/organization/divisions/water/dwgb /dwspp.

Easy steps to help protect drinking water.

° Reduce the amount of trash you create by taking advantage of recycling programs
° Recycle used antifreeze & motor oil

> Don’t dump anything into storm drains

> Do not overuse household chemicals

° Check frequently for leaks in any underground fuel storage tanks

° Inspect your septic system for issues yearly

° Properly seal abandoned wells

° Limit the use of lawn fertilizers, be sure to use only phosphorus-free lawn fertilizers
and reduce or eliminate pesticide applications

° Keep pollutants away from boat marinas and waterways
° Report any spills or illegal dumping in designated Drinking Water Protection Areas

> Commercial properties — Install a Backflow Protection Device
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WATER QUALITY

MVD’s water quality and sampling are regulated by the New Hampshire Department
of Environmental Services NHDES).

In order to ensure that tap water is safe to drink the EPA prescribes regulations, which
limit the amount of certain contaminants in water provided by public water systems.

To comply with the required regulations MVD tests for various contaminants, including
inorganic contaminants (salts, metals), organic chemical contaminants (synthetic and
volatile chemicals), and radioactive contaminants as well as some additional unregulated
contaminants/chemicals.

Water analyses and treatments are performed as required and directed by the United
States Environmental Services Agency’s Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) and the
NHDES Drinking Water and Groundwater Bureau (DWGB).

All water tests are performed by an independent laboratory that is accredited in
accordance with the National Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program
(NELAP) & the New Hampshire Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program
(NHELAP). All testing is reported to and monitored by the NHDES.

Results from these tests are provided on MVD’s Annual CCR (Water Quality Report).
The most recent CCR is included in this Annual Report and can also be found on
MVD’s website at www.mvdwater.oro.

PFAS Information: Per-and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS), sometimes referred to
as PFCs, are a family of man-made compounds that do not naturally occur in the
environment. They have a large number of industrial uses and are found in many
commercial products because of their properties to resist heat, oil, grease and water.
Once released to the environment, PFCs are persistent and do not biodegrade or
breakdown. Additional information regarding PFAS, including standards, analysis
reports for water sampling test results, historical charts, resources, announcements,
media/press releases and contact information can be found on MVD’s web page at
http://www.mvdwater.ore/pfas_info.

For more information regarding water quality, please contact:

Jill Lavoie, MVD Business Manager
jilllavoie@mvdwater.org
603-424-9241

For more information, specifically regarding PFAS, please either contact MVD
or the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services’ Public
Information Officer, Jim Martin by phone at 603-271-3710 or via email to
james.martin@des.nh.gov.
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CONSUMER CONFIDENCE REPORT

The following is the 2020 Consumer
Confidence Report (CCR), which contains 2019
data. The 2021 CCR will be published by June
30™,

When the report is complete and available, a pdf
copy will be posted on the MVD website,
www.mvdwater.org, for viewing and printing.
Notification of availability will be provided by
postcard via US Postal Service to the mailing

address on file for each service location as well
as announced on MVD’s website, Facebook,
and sent by email to subscribers of MVD’s

“Announcement & Notices’’ notifications.

For more information regarding water

quality, please visit www.mvdwater.org ot

contact our office.
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WATER RESTRICTIONS/BANS

1. To assist in managing the water distribution system — ensuring we maintain

Purpose:

adequate supply for residential and commercial usage.

2. Maintain the required level of water in the storage tanks to ensure ample
pressure for potential use by the Town of Merrimack’s Fire Department.

3. Comply with the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services (NH
DES) Drinking Water and Groundwater Bureau (DWGB) rules and
regulations.

Reasoning:

MVD's water is supplied from groundwater wells, not surface water such as
rivers, lakes, and reservoirs. The New Hampshire Department of
Environmental Services (NH DES) Drinking Water and Groundwater Bureau
(DWGB) permits each of MVD’s wells to withdraw a maximum specified
quantity of water from the ground per minute — this limits the amount of water
we are permitted to produce at a time. Limiting the production amount allows
water withdrawal from the aquifer in a controlled manner, which helps protect
against seasonal fluctuations, and aids in maintaining sufficient supply. Irrigation
and sprinklers have the highest rate of water consumption and causes
substantially increased demands. Increased demand is supplied by three storage
tanks; the tanks cannot fill up faster than what we are allowed to produce —
having Water Restrictions allows the tanks to replenish and be ready for peak
usage demands.

Details:

Information about the current Watering Restriction as well as any changes to the
Level of the Watering Restrictions can be found posted on signs/banners located
throughout town, through email notification for subscribers, as well as on MVD’s
Facebook page and website.

Other useful information on the Watering Restrictions/Bans page of our website
is a “Frequently Asked Questions” document, an “Irrigation Calenlator”, links to the “US
Dronght Monitor for NH” and to the “Known Water Use Restrictions”.

MVD staff adjusts the production rates to match demand and continuously
monitors the water distribution system, the weather conditions & forecasts to
determine if additional Watering Restrictions are necessary.

MVD has multiple levels for Water Restrictions; Year-Round Odd/Even, Level
1, Level 2, and Level 3.
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(WATER RESTRICTIONS/BANS CONTINUED)

'YEAR-ROUND

MVD customers with street addresses that end in an odd number can water only on odd

days of the month, while residents with even numbered addresses can water on even
numbered days.
On the 31% of March, May, July, August, and October, all residents may water outside, but
only from 5 AM to 8 AM.
(Refer to MVD By-Laws 2.D. and 2.J.)

LEVEL 1

Outside watering may be done on odd/even days based upon house number and date.

Outside watering will be permitted between the hours of 5am to 8am and/or 5pm to 8pm
1. Washing of streets, driveways, sidewalks or other impervious areas is prohibited.
ii. Washing of cars and boats at a non-commercial facility shall be restricted to odd/even
days by address as described above.

LEVEL 2

Outside watering by odd numbered addresses is allowed on Mondays and Thursdays.

Outside watering by even numbered addresses is allowed on Tuesdays and Fridays.
Outside watering will be permitted between the houts of 5am to 8am and/or 5pm to 8pm
1. Washing of streets, driveways, sidewalks or other impervious areas is prohibited.

1. Washing of cars and boats at a non-commercial facility shall be prohibited.

NO OUTSIDE WATER USE

In times that precipitation is not substantial enough to permeate into the ground and fully
replenish groundwater sources a Watering Ban may be imposed to ensure we maintain adequate
supply for necessary use (refer to number 1, 2, and 3, listed above section: “Purpose”). Per MVD

By-Law 2.] - "... The MV'D Board of Commissioners has the authority under RSA 38:26 to issue a

partial or full water ban at it’s discretion as well as fine for any violation to preserve the safety and integrity of the
systen. .. Should a State or Federal drought or other emergency be declared, the Merrimack
Village District may supplement/modify its existing policy.

Restriction Exceptions:

1. Hand irrigation of crops used for food by residents at a residential property shall not be
restricted.

ii. Water to sustain animal life shall not be restricted.

iii. Despite the authority granted by RSA 41:11-d. water use restrictions shall not apply to
uses that obtain water from sources other than the public water supply, unless it can be
clearly demonstrated that the use of such water directly affects the public water supply. Note:
Municipalities or village districts have the authority to implement lawn watering restrictions
in accordance with RSA 41:11-d applicable to all water users (including those using private
wells) under state declared drought conditions.

Please be advised - MVD's Watering Restrictions and Bans are strictly enforced.
Per MVD By-Law 1.D.: “The first violation will result in a warning letter. Further violations will result in
termination of water service as well as fees.”
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MAINTENANCE PROGRAMS

MYVD has the following maintenance programs in place to maintain the water
quality and supply:

Water Flushing Program —

To maintain the water quality throughout the water distribution system, MVD performs
a unidirectional flushing of the water mains in the spring and autumn of each year. The
program involves opening flushing valves to create increased water flow; this dislodges
and cleans out naturally occurring sediment in the water mains. Flushing
typically occurs weekdays between the hours of 8:00 AM to 3:00 PM.

In order to keep customers aware of the progress*, MVD provides notification of the
streets scheduled for flushing on a weekly basis to Merrimack TV Online, as well as
the two local newspapers. Additionally, the schedule is posted on our website
at www.mvdwater.org as well as posted to our Facebook page.

During the water flushing there can be fluctuations of pressure and/or brief
interruptions of water service. Additionally, flushing may cause minor flooding of
streets, and discolored water.

Discolored water is typically caused by sediment, such as iron. Although discolored
water is not aesthetically pleasing it is not unsafe** and can be easily resolved by
flushing the water service line to the property. Flushing allows a larger than normal
quantity of water to flow through the service line, which helps clear out the
sediment. You may notice the discoloration return after the water has sat in the lines
for a period, such as overnight or during the day if it is not being used — this is to be
expected. When the water is not used for a longer period of time the sediment settles,
when water is turned on it is agitated and the discoloration returns. If this happens,
you may repeat the flushing process.

If your water is discolored, we recommend avoiding the use of hot water until the cold
water is clear. If you have used hot water prior to/during flushing and are noticing
discoloration in the hot water, the water heater may need to be flushed — refer to the
manufacturer’s manual for instructions or contact a licensed plumber.

*Residential customers with special water needs required for medical reasons are urged to call MVD so they
can be notified in advance of flushing in their area.

**Some people may be more vulnerable to contaminants in drinking water than the general population. These
people should seek advice about from their health care providers.
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(MAINTENANCE PROGRAMS CONTINUED)

Fire Hydrant Maintenance —

MVD’s Hydrant Maintenance Program ensures that the hydrants are operable and
available for use by the Merrimack Fire Department in an emergency situation.
Hydrants are flushed twice a year (usually in the spring and autumn) and typically after
any use by the fire department. During the flushing process MVD’s technicians perform
an inspection of the hydrant and its parts to ensure the hydrant is operable and readily
accessible. Inspection includes a visual examination of the hydrant; including checking
valves, checking (and if necessary cleaning/lubricating) caps, checking for leaks,
checking the flow of water, and assessing if there are any required repairs to the hydrant
or area surrounding it. During the winter hydrants are cleared of snow and ice. Hydrants
are also painted as needed which is necessary to ensure the fire department can readily
locate a hydrant.

Backflow Prevention Device Program -

Backflow devices are required by the New Hampshire Department of Environmental
Services — Drinking Water & Groundwater Bureau (NHDES DWGB) as part of the
Cross-Contamination Control Program. In the event of a decrease or increase in water
pressure, the backflow device protects any contaminated water from being siphoned
back into the water system; protecting the water system from potential contamination.
MVD has licensed backflow inspectors who perform annual and semi-annual testing of
the backflow devices. Annual tests are required for businesses considered “low” hazard
(such as office buildings) and semi-annual tests are required for “high” hazard facilities
(such as gas stations and medical facilities). Questions about this program?
Please contact Jill Lavoie by phone at 603-424-9241 x: 103 or via email at
jilllavoie@mvdwater.org.

Meter Exchange Program —

Like any mechanical device, water meters are susceptible to wear and deterioration over
time which causes the internal mechanics of the meter to slow down. In turn, the slow
down causes water usage to be registered inaccurately; typically, lower than what is
actually used. This results in unaccounted for or “lost” water. Lost water has a fiscal
impact on MVD and its customers. Lost water is not billed and does not generate
revenue; however, it still costs MVD to pump, treat, and distribute the water. The
potential for revenue loss can be staggering if a large number of meters are under-
registering. MVD’s water meter exchange program is intended to decrease lost water
and thereby, reduce unnecessary costs. To ensure the accuracy of meter readings and
billings MVD performs routine meter exchanges. Service locations that are due for a
meter exchange will receive notification.
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BILLING & SCHEDULE OF RATES

Bills are sent quarterly in 3 cycles. The property’s location determines the billing cycle
and which months bills are sent. The quarterly cycles can be viewed on our web page
at www.mvdwater.org.

MVD’s rates and fees are based upon the type of service for each location. Below are
the types and explanation of the charges. The complete Schedule of Rates is available
on our website at www.mvdwater.org (hardcopies can be obtained at the MVD office).

Domestic (Residential) water bills consist of the following:

o Meter Charge — Cost is determined by the meter size for the water service location.
Water service locations with multiple units served by one meter are charged per
unit (refer to MVD By-Laws: Section 9).

o Water Usage Charge — Cost for all water passing through the meter; whether used,
wasted, or lost by leakage.

o Hydrant Charge — For structures, buildings, or units within a six hundred (600)
foot radius of a hydrant. This charge applies regardless if the property is provided
water service by MVD.

Mercantile & Industrial water bills consist of the following:
o Meter, Usage, & *Hydrant charges as listed above.

o Fire Sprinkler Charge — For structures, buildings, or units that are connected to a
fire sprinkler water service line. Cost determined by the size of water line.

Description of Service: Rate:
‘Water Consumption/Usage Charge $2.32 per 100 cubic feet
Meter Charge uarterly: Yearly:
5/8" $16.00 264.00
1" $28.50 $114.00
1-1,/2" S44.00 $176.00
2 $65.00 $260.00
3 $98.75 $395.00
4 $153.00 $612.00
6" $286.00 §1,144.00
8" $444.00 §1,776.00
10 $626.25 §2,505.00
127 $1,114.00 §4.456.00
Hydrant Charge uarterly: Yearly:
Domestic
(Residential /Condominiums) $19.50 $78.00
Mercantile $39.00 $156.00
Industrial $97.00 $388.00
Fire Protection uarterly: Yearly:
2 $56.00 $224.00
4" $112.00 $448.00
6" $251.00 §1,004.00
8" $447.00 §1,788.00
([l 77500 §3,100.00
12 $1,006.00 §4 0024.00
Maonthly charge of 1.5% of total balance due past 30 days
Carrying Charges/Late Fees Minimum $5.00
Return Payment Fee 825.00 + MVD Cost
Lien Recording and Lien Release Recording Lien Recording and Lien Release Recording - Current HCRD Cost
Licns and Lien Releases are recorded to the Hillshorough County LCHIP Fees - Carrent HCRD Cost
Registry of Deeds (HCRD). Filing Fee - §75.00 per recording
Residential - $40.00
Mercantile - $50.00
Service Transfer Fee (Buyer) Industrial - $60.00
Final Reading/Billing Fee (Seller) $30.00
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PAYMENT INFORMATION

MVD accepts cash, check, money order, credit cards, and electronic check
(e-check) payments.

o l..u
s>’ % Ccheck

000000000 " wrmasns s

NOTE: Credit card and e-check payments can only be processed online or through the
automated phone system.

CREDIT CARD/E-CHECK

Online: ACI Payments, Inc.
(https://www.officialpayments.com/index.jsp)

Phone: 800-272-9829

Please note, you will need the account number that you are making the payment for as well as
MVD’s four digit “Jurisdiction Code” which is “3903”. Additionally, please be advised that ACI
Payments, Inc. charges a convenience fee and per, NH RSA, MVD is not allowed to absorb the
fee; it must be paid by the customer. MVD only uses aci paymenTs, inc. for credit card and e-check
processing.

CHECK/MONEY ORDER/CASH

Mail To: 2 Greens Pond Rd Merrimack, NH 03054

Drop-off: Payments can be dropped off at the above address; either walk-in or
use the “drop-box” located to the left of the front door.

NOTE: All payments received, by either by mail or drop-off; prior to 1:00 pm are processed on the
same business day. Payments after 1:00 pm may be processed the following business day.
Cash payments are accepted in-person at MVD office only.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Online Banking/Bill Pay - Payments that are processed through your online banking/bill
payment method are not received electronically by MVD. Your bank will physically send a
paper check to MVD via US Postal Service. Due to this delivery procedure there can be a
delay in receipt of your payment. If you choose to process payment through your bank’s
online banking/bill payment method we advise you to request the payment be received
by MVD a minimum of 1 week prior to the due date. For example, if your bill is due on the
10th, we would recommend requesting your bank have the payment to MVD by the 3rd.

ADVISORY: Non-Affiliated 3rd-Party Bill Payment Services - Please Be Advised -
Some 3" party bill payment services are made to APPEAR they are affiliated with Merrimack
Village District. "Doxo.com" and "ChargeSmart.com" are examples of third-party companies
that allow payment of utility bills via their website and mobile applications. These companies,
and any other 3rd-party bill payment service companies, including online banking/bill pay
services, are not affiliated with Merrimack Village District and therefore payment is
NOT received electronically (a paper check will be mailed to MVD via US Postal Service).
Due to this delivery procedure MVD cannot control when, or, possibly, if payment will be
received - which may result in late payments/fees or potentially water service disconnection
for non-payment.
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PLODZIK & SANDERSON

Professional Association/Accountants & Auditors
193 North Main Street « Concord o New Hampshire e 03301-5063 ¢ 603-225-6996 « FAX 603-224-1380

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of the Board of Commissioners
Merrimack Village District
Merrimack, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and enterprise fund of the Merrimack
Village District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position
of the business-type activities and enterprise fund of the Merrimack Village District, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows thereof, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in fiscal year 2020 the District adopted new accounting guidance,
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information — Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
the following be presented to supplement the basic financial statements:

e  Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
e  Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability,

1
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Schedule of District Contributions — Pensions,

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability,

Schedule of District Contributions — Other Postemployment Benefits,

Schedule of Changes in the District’s Total Other Postemployment Benefits Liability and Related Ratios, and
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Plodaik, § Ramdarnson,
February 5, 2021 B M aa&)umm
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Merrimack Village District (the District) offers readers this narrative overview and analysis of
the financial activities of the District for the year ended June 30, 2020.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the financial statements presented herein.
The financial statements are comprised of two components: (1) proprietary fund financial statements, and (2)
notes to financial statements.

Proprietary fund financial statements: The District’s operations are accounted for as a single proprietary fund
using the accrual basis of accounting. In this regard, the District’s operations are accounted for in a manner
similar to a private business enterprise.

Notes to financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the financial statements.

Other information: In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents

certain supplementary information required to be disclosed by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
as defined by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in the United States of America.

NET POSITION

As of the close of the current year, the total of assets and deferred outflows of resources, exceeded liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources by $25,357,243 (i.e., net position), a change of $4,444,162 in comparison to
the prior year. Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of overall financial standing.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The total investment in capital assets at year-end was $22,861,692, a change of $4,279,953 from the prior year.
This investment in capital assets includes buildings and improvements, land and improvements, machinery,
equipment, vehicles, infrastructure assets (e.g. treatment systems, pumping wells, water mains) and intangible
assets (i.e. easements).

The total debt outstanding at year-end was $5,570,339, a change of ($447,714), due to routine debt service
retirements and note payments.

Additional information on capital assets and debt can be found in the Notes to Financial Statements.
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NET POSITION

Percent
2020 2019 Difference Change
Current assets $ 11,386,215 $ 10,113,497 $ 1,272,718 12.58%
Noncurrent assets 22.861,692 18,581,739 4,279,953 23.03%
Total assets 34,247,907 28,695,236 5,552,671 19.35%
Deferred outflows 244,853 204,300 40,553 19.85%
Current liabilities 1,578,578 345,993 1,232,585 356.25%
Noncurrent liabilities 7.499,513 7,570,503 (70,990) -0.94%
Total liabilities 9,078,091 7,916,496 1,161,595 14.67%
Deferred inflows 57,426 69,959 (12,533) -17.91%
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 17,552,302 12,869,529 4,682,773 36.39%
Restricted 846,036 423,921 422,115 99.57%
Unrestricted 6,958,905 7,619,631 (660,726) -8.67%
Total net position $ 25,357,243 $ 20,913,081 $ 4,444,162 21.25%
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Percent
2020 2019 Difference Change
Operating revenues:
User charges $ 4,324,787 $ 3,613,860 $ 710,927 19.67%
Miscellaneous 260,188 135,115 125,073 92.57%
Total operating revenues 4,584,975 3,748,975 836,000 22.30%
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 1,727,831 1,550,040 177,791 11.47%
Operation and maintenance 1,219,016 999,921 219,095 21.91%
Depreciation 675,941 691,207 (15,266) -2.21%
Total operating expenses 3,622,788 3,241,168 381,620 11.77%
Operating gain 962,187 507.807 454,380 89.48%
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest revenue 30,627 23,514 7,113 30.25%
Intergovernmental revenues 394,796 - 394,796 100.00%
Change in fair market value of investments 74,952 64,687 10,265 100.00%
Net gain on sale of property - 25,703 (25,703) 100.00%
Settlement proceeds 3,137,063 303,387 2,833,676 100.00%
Interest expense (155,463) (181,335) 25,872 -14.27%
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 3,481,975 235,956 3,246,019 1375.69%
Change in net position 4,444,162 743,763 3,700,399 497.52%
Net position at beginning of year 20,913,081 20,169,318 743,763 3.69%
Net position at end of year $ 25,357,243 $ 20,913,081 § 4444 162 21.25%

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all those with an
interest in the District’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be directed to:

Merrimack Village District — 2 Greens Pond Road — Merrimack, NH 03054 / 603-424-9241
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EXHIBIT A
MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,708,501
Restricted cash 863,718
Investments 997
Accounts receivable 1,385,136
Intergovernmental receivable 5,276,269
Inventory 113,152
Prepaid items 38,442

Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 5,902,539
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 16,959,153
Total assets 34,247,907

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Amounts related to pensions 200,535
Amounts related to other postemployment benefits 44,318
Total deferred outflows of resources 244,853
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,266,362
Accrued salaries and benefits 46,056
Retainage payable 226,020
Accrued interest payable 40,140
Intergovernmental payable 322,063
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 461,971
Due in more than one year 6,715,479
Total liabilities 9,078,091
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Amounts related to pensions 49,635
Amounts related to other postemployment benefits 7,791
Total deferred inflows of resources 57,426
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 17,552,302
Restricted 846,036
Unrestricted 6,958,905
Total net position $ 25,357,243

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
5
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EXHIBIT B
MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Operating revenues:

User charges $ 4,324,787
Miscellaneous 260,188
Total operating revenues 4,584,975
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 1,727,831
Operation and maintenance 1,219,016
Depreciation 675,941
Total operating expenses 3,622,788
Operating gain 962,187
Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest income 30,627
Intergovernmental revenues 394,796
Change in fair market value of investments 74,952
Interest expense (155,463)
Settlement proceeds 3,137,063
Total nonoperating revenues 3,481,975
Change in net position 4,444,162
Net position, beginning 20,913,081
Net position, ending $ 25,357,243

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
6
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EXHIBIT C

MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Proprietary Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal paid on bonds
Acquisition and construction of fixed assets
Proceeds from State of NH Drinking Water and Groundwater Trust
Proceeds from State of NH State Revolving Loan Management Fee Fund
Proceeds from issuance of State Revolving Loan
Cash received from capital reserves
Interest paid
Net cash used for capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Settlement proceeds

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments

Interest received
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
Cash and cash equivalents, ending

§ 4,275,789
(1,625,941)

(23,976)
2,625,872

(447,714)

(4,955,894)
306,276
20,000
255,446
657,565

(180,630)
(4,344,951)

2,845,102

906,133
105,579

1,011,712

2,137,735
2,434,484

S 457219

Reconciliation of Operating Gain to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating gain

Adjustments to reconcile operating gain to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Increase in other receivables
Increase in accounts payable
Increase in accrued salaries and benefits
Increase in retainage payable
Decrease in prepaid items
Increase in inventory
Increase in compensated absences
Decrease in net pension liability and deferred outflows
and inflows of resources related to pensions
Increase in other postemployment benefits and deferred outflows
and inflows of resources related to OPEB
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

$ 962,187

675,941
(309,186)
998,034

22,018
226,020
(28,066)

(948)
17,852

38,783

23,237

1,663,685
$ 2,625,872

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

7
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MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2020
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MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Merrimack Village District, New Hampshire (the District), have been prepared in conformity
with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other authoritative sources.

In fiscal year 2020, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements, which requires increased disclosures by separating direct borrowings and direct placements
from other debt in the notes to the financial statements.

The more significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below.

1-A Reporting Entity

The Merrimack Village District is a municipal corporation governed by an elected 5-member Board of Commissioners. In
evaluating how to define the District for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component units.
The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity is made by applying the criteria set forth by the GASB.
The District has no component units to include in its reporting entity.

1-B Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The District prepares its financial statements as a proprietary fund type (enterprise fund) on an accrual basis of accounting.
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (including depreciation) to provide certain goods and services
to the general public are to be financed or recovered primarily through user charges or where the governing body has deemed
that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for purpose of monitoring capital maintenance, accountability, or other
purposes.

The proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting. Accordingly, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities (whether current or noncurrent), and deferred
inflows of resources are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All
other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary
operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses.

1-C Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Deposits with financial institutions consist primarily of demand deposits and savings accounts.

The treasurer is required to deposit such moneys in solvent banks in state or the Public Deposit Investment Pool pursuant to New
Hampshire RSA 383:22. Funds may be deposited in banks outside of the state if such banks pledge and deliver to a third party
custodial bank or the Federal Reserve Bank, collateral security for such deposits, United States government or government
agency obligations or obligations to the State of New Hampshire in value at least equal to the amount of the deposit in each case.

1-D Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the District considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets)
with a maturity when purchased of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
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MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2020

1-E Investments
State statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deposits and investments available as follows:

New Hampshire law authorizes the District to invest in the following type of obligations:

*  Obligations of the United States government,

*  The public deposit investment pool established pursuant to RSA 383:22,

+  Savings bank deposits,

+  Certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements of banks incorporated under the laws of the State of New
Hampshire or in banks recognized by the State treasurer.

Any person who directly or indirectly receives any such funds or moneys for deposit or for investment in securities of any kind
shall, prior to acceptance of such funds, make available at the time of such deposit or investment an option to have such funds
secured by collateral having a value at least equal to the amount of such funds. Such collateral shall be segregated for the
exclusive benefit of the District. Only securities defined by the bank commissioner as provided by rules adopted pursuant to
RSA 386:57 shall be eligible to be pledged as collateral.

Fair Value Measurements of Investments — In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and
Application, except for investments measured using net asset value (NAV) as a practical expedient to estimate fair value, the
District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments within the fair value hierarchy established by US GAAP. The
fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used for fair value measurement into three levels as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the District
has the ability to access at the measurement date. Directly held marketable equity securities would be examples of
Level 1 investments.

Level 2 — Inputs are other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or
indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active. Because they most often are priced on the
basis of transactions involving similar but not identical securities or do not trade with sufficient frequency, certain
directly held fixed income securities are categorized in Level 2. All of the District’s holdings in New Hampshire
Public Deposit Investment Pool (NHPDIP) is an example of Level 2 investments. All of the District’s holdings in
New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment, U.S. government obligations, and corporate bonds would be examples of
Level 2 investments.

Level 3 — Inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs. In certain instances
where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from different levels of the fair value hierarchy, is the
level in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Investments
are reported at fair value. If an investment is held directly by the District and an active market with quoted prices exists, such as
for domestic equity securities, the market price of an identical security is used to report fair value and is classified in Level 1.
Corporate fixed income securities and certain governmental securities utilize pricing that may involve estimation using similar
securities or trade dates and are classified in Level 2. Fair values for shares in registered mutual funds and exchange-traded
funds are based on published share prices and classified in Level 1.

In determining fair value, the District utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible.

Investments in Certain External Investment Pools — In accordance with GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External
Investment Pools and Pool Participants, the District held investments with the New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool
(NHPDIP) are categorized as Level 2. The NHPDIP measures all of its investments at amortized cost. There are no redemption
restrictions and shares may be redeemed by the District in accordance with the NHPDIP’s Information Statement.

10
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MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2020

1-F Receivables

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent amounts due to the District at June 30. They are aggregated into a
single accounts receivable line. They consist primarily of user charges and trust funds held in the custody of the Town of
Merrimack Trustees of Trust Funds.

1-G Inventory

The inventories of the District are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The inventories of the District’s
proprietary fund consist of water system materials and supplies. The cost is recorded as an expense when consumed rather than
when purchased.

1-H Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.

1-I Capital Assets

Capital assets include property, plant, and equipment, infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items),
and intangible assets (i.e., easements), which are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year for water main improvements and operating equipment or $50,000 or
more for infrastructure. As the District constructs or acquires additional capital assets each year, they are capitalized and
reported at historical cost. When the cost of the capital assets cannot be determined from available records, estimated historical
cost is used. Donated capital assets received on or prior to June 15, 2015 are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
donations. Donated capital assets received after June 15, 2015 are recorded at acquisition value.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvements are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related fixed assets, as applicable.

Capital assets of the District are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Capital Asset Classes:
Land improvements 20-50
Buildings and building improvements 15-100
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 5-50
Infrastructure 5-50

1-J Accounts Payable

Accounts payable represent the gross amount of expenditures or expenses incurred as a result of normal operations, but for which
no actual payment has yet been issued to vendors/providers as of June 30, 2020.

1-K Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources, a separate financial statement element, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and thus will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses) until then. Deferred outflows of resources
consist of unrecognized items not yet charged to pension and OPEB expense and contributions from the District after the
measurement date but before the end of the District’s reporting period.

Deferred inflows of resources, a separate financial statement element, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

1-L Long-term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.

11
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MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2020

1-M Compensated Absences

General leave for the District includes vacation and sick pay. General leave is based on an employee’s length of employment
and is earned ratably during the span of employment. Upon retirement or termination, employees are paid full value for any
accrued general leave earned as set forth by personnel policy. The liability for such leave is reported as incurred in the
proprietary fund financial statements.

1-N Claims and Judgments

Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements are met. Claims and judgments are recorded in the proprietary fund financial statements as an expense when
the related liabilities are incurred.

1-0 Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

The District maintains two separate other postemployment benefit plans, as follows:

New Hampshire Retirement System Plan — For the purposes of measuring the total other postemployment benefit (OPEB)
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information
about the fiduciary net position of the New Hampshire Retirement System OPEB Plan (the plan) and additions to/deductions
from the plan’s fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the New Hampshire
Retirement System. For this purpose, the plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except money market investments and participating interest earning investment
contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost.

Single Employer Plan — For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information has been determined based on the District’s actuarial report. For
this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms.

1-P Defined Benefit Pension Plan

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and as
amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date and
GASB Statement No. 82 Pension Issues — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 67, No. 68 and No. 73 requires participating
employers to recognize their proportionate share of collective net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources, and pension expense, and schedules have been prepared to provide employers with their calculated
proportionate share of these amounts. The collective amounts have been allocated based on employer contributions during the
respective fiscal years. Contributions from employers are recognized when legally due, based on statutory requirements.

The schedules prepared by New Hampshire Retirement System, and audited by the plan’s independent auditors, require
management to make a number of estimates and assumptions related to the reported amounts. Due to the inherent nature and
uncertainty of these estimates, actual results could differ, and the differences may be material.

1-Q Net Position

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt
attributable to the unspent proceeds are not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets.

Restricted net position — Results when constraints placed on net position use are either externally imposed by a third
party (statutory, bon covenant, or granting agency) or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. The District typically uses restricted assets first, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to
selectively defer the use until a further project.
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Unrestricted net position — Consists of net position not meeting the definition of the preceding categories.
Unrestricted net position is often subject to constraints imposed by management which can be removed or modified.

1-R Use of Estimates

The financial statements and related disclosures are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. Management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements, and revenues and expenses during the period reported. These estimates include assessing the
collectability of accounts receivable, recoverability of inventory and the useful lives of capital assets, among others. Estimates
and assumptions are reviewed periodically, and the effects of revisions are reflected in the financial statements in the period they
are determined to be necessary. Actuoal results could differ from estimates.

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

NOTE 2 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The District’s deposits are entirely covered by federal depository insurance (FDIC) or by collateral held by the District’s agent in
the District’s name. The FDIC currently insures the first $250,000 of the District’s deposits at each financial institution, per case
custodian. Deposit balances over $250,000 are insured by the collateral. As of year-end, the carrying amount of the District’s
deposits was $4,572,219 and the bank balances totaled $4,573,312. Petty cash totaled $250.

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS

Note 1-F describes statutory requirements covering the investment of the District funds. The District holds investments that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Because investing is not a core part of the District’s mission, the District determines
that the disclosures related to these investments only need to be disaggregated by major type. The District categorizes its fair
value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The District has the
following recurring fair value measurements and maturities as of June 30, 2020:

Investments carried at amortized cost:
NH Public Deposit Investment Pool $ 997

Interest Rate Risk — This is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.
The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to
fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk - The District has no formal policy on managing credit risk; however, state law limits investments as explained in
Note 1-E.

Custodial Credit Risk — This is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker/dealer) to honor a
transaction, the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. The District does not have custodial credit risk policies for investments.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The District places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer.

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Receivables at June 30, 2020, consisted of billings for water and other user charges. Receivables are recorded on the District’s
financial statements to the extent that the amounts are determined to be material and substantiated not only by supporting
documentation, but also by a reasonable, systematic method of determining their existence, completeness, valuation, and
collectability.
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NOTE 5 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

Amounts due from other governments at June 30, 2020, consisted of amounts held in the custody of the Trustees of Trust Funds
for the Town of Merrimack.

Due from New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services -

Drinking Water and Ground Water Trust Fund $ 84,512
Due from the Town of Merrimack Trustees of Trust Funds:

Capital Reserve Funds:

Acquisition of Land $ 1,570,488
Equipment and Facilities 3,150,736
System Development Charge 366,127
Legal Fees 104,406
Total due from the Town of Merrimack Trustees of Trust Funds 5,191,757
Total due from other governments $ 5,276,269

NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Balance, Balance,
beginning Additions ending
At cost:
Not being depreciated:
Land $ 393,210 $ - $ 393,210
Construction in progress 901,928 4,607,401 5,509,329
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,295,138 4,607,401 5,902,539
Being depreciated:
Land improvements 3,299,253 B 3,299,253
Buildings and building improvements 797,290 11,859 809,149
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 2,500,690 73,195 2,573,885
Infrastructure 25,392,467 263,439 25,655,906
Total capital assets being depreciated 31,989,700 348,493 32,338,193
Total all capital assets 33,284,838 4,955,894 38,240,732
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (2,049,730) (66,397) (2,116,127)
Buildings and building improvements (501,212) (16,634) (517,846)
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles (1,454,998) (100,772) (1,555,770)
Infrastructure (10,697,159) (492,138) (11,189,297)
Total accumulated depreciation (14,703,099) (675,941) (15,379,040)
Net book value, capital assets being depreciated 17,286,601 (327,448) 16,959,153
Net book value, all capital assets $ 18,581,739 $ 4,279,953 $ 22,861,692

NOTE 7—- DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources at June 30, 2020 consist of amounts related to pensions totaling $200,535 and amounts related to
OPEB totaling $44,318. For further discussion on these amounts, see Note 10 and 11 respectively.

Deferred inflows of resources are as follows:
Business-type

Activities
Amounts related to pensions, see Note 10 $ 49,635
Amounts related to OPEB, see Note 11 7,791
Total deferred inflows of resources $ 57,426
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NOTE 8 — INTERGOVERNMENTAL PAYABLES

Amounts due to other governments of $322,063 at June 30, 2020 consist of amounts drawn on the District’s loan with the State
of New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services Drinking Water and Ground Water trust fund. Amount represents the
amount drawn to date on the approved $1,300,000 authorized. The remaining amount available to draw down as of June 30, 2020
is $977,937.

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The District issues general obligation bonds and state revolving loans (both considered direct borrowings) to provide funds for
the acquisition and construction of major capital infrastructure. Long-term liabilities are comprised of the following:

Original Maturity Interest Outstanding at Current
Amount Date Rate % June 30, 2020 Portion
Bonds payable:

2002 Series B issue $ 1,500,000 2023 3.00-5.00% $ 225,000 $ 75,000
2010 Series B issue $ 835,000 2026 3.00-5.00% 315,000 55,000
2010 Series D issue $ 2,800,000 2031 3.00-5.00% 1,430,000 130,000
Drinking Water SRF $ 4,300,000 2036 1.96% 3,600,339 191,393
Total bonds payable 5,570,339 451,393
Bond premium 58,206 10,578
Total $ 5,628,545 $ 461,971

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation bonds and state revolving loans outstanding as of June 30, 2020,
including interest payments, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 451,393 $ 155264 $ 606,657
2022 455,145 132,229 587,374
2023 458,969 115,955 574,924
2024 382,869 100,649 483,518
2025 386,845 89,335 476,180

2026-2030 1,796,652 282,912 2,079,564
2031-2035 1,338,421 104,629 1,443,050
2036 300,045 5,880 305,925
Totals $ 5,570,339 $ 986,853 $ 6,557,192

The District has issued direct borrowings from the New Hampshire Municipal Bond Bank as well as from the New Hampshire
Department of Environmental Services.

Through the New Hampshire Municipal Bond Bank, all eligible communities submit a loan application to the Bond Bank. Once
approved for a loan by the Board of Directors, the local governmental unit executes a loan agreement with the Bond Bank. The
Bond Bank will combine all approved borrowers into a single pooled bond issue when it is ready to enter the national bond
market. Once the sale occurs, the proceeds are deposited and made available to each eligible participating community as a loan.
The Bond Bank will provide each participating community with a final financing schedule after interest rates have been
determined by the sale. ;

The New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services offers two financial assistance programs to communities for the
design and construction of eligible water and wastewater project; the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) and the
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF). Both programs provide low interest loans to local government entities
primarily for the construction and improvement of drinking water and wastewater infrastructure.

As of June 30, 2020, there were no unused lines of credit or assets pledged as collateral for debt.
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Changes in the District’s long-term liabilities consisted of the following for the year ended June 30, 2020:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 One Year
Bonds payable:

General obligation bonds $ 2,230,000 $ = $ (260,000) $ 1,970,000 $ 260,000
State revolving loans 3,788,053 - (187,714) 3,600,339 191,393
Bond premium 69,886 . (11,680) 58,206 10,578
Total bonds payable 6,087,939 - (459,394) 5,628,545 461,971
Compensated absences 156,459 17,852 - 174,311 -

Net pension liability 1,097,969 51,581 - 1,149,550
Net other postemployment benefits 161,519 63,525 - 225,044 -
Total long-term liabilities $§  7.503.886 $ 132,958 $ (459,394) § 7,177,450 $ 461,971

All debt is general obligation debt of the District, which is backed by its full faith and credit, and will be repaid from water user
fees.

Bond Authorized and Unissued — Bonds and notes authorized and unissued as of June 30, 2020 were as follows:

Per
Town Meeting Unissued
Vote of Purpose Amount
March 27, 2019 Wells 7 and 9 $ 3,600,000
March 27,2019 Wells 2 and 3 10,900,000

$ 14,500,000

NOTE 10 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description — The New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS or the System) is a public employee retirement system that
administers one cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan (Pension Plan), a component unit of the State of
New Hampshire, as defined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for
Pension Plans — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25. The Pension Plan was established in 1967 by RSA 100-A:2 and is
qualified as a tax-exempt organization under Sections 401(a) and 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Pension Plan is a
contributory, defined benefit plan providing service, disability, death and vested retirement benefits to members and their
beneficiaries. Substantially all full-time state employees, public school teachers and administrators, permanent firefighters and
permanent police officers within the State are eligible and required to participate in the Pension Plan. The System issues a
publicly available financial report that may be obtained by writing the New Hampshire Retirement System, 54 Regional Drive,
Concord, NH 03301.

Benefits Provided — The Pension Plan is divided into two membership groups. State and local employees and teachers belong to
Group 1. Police and firefighters belong to Group II. All assets are held in a single trust and available to pay retirement benefits
to all members.

Group I members at age 60 or 65 (for members who commence service after July 1, 2011) quality for a normal service retirement
allowance based on years of creditable service and average final salary for the highest of either three or five years, depending on
when their service commenced. The yearly pension amount is 1/60 or 1.667% of average final compensation (AFC) multiplied
by years of creditable service. At age 65, the yearly pension amount is recalculated at 1/66 or 1.515% of AFC multiplied by
years of creditable service.

Group Il members who are age 60, or members who are at least age 45 with at least 20 years of creditable service, can receive a
retirement allowance at a rate of 2.5% of AFC for each year of creditable service, not to exceed 40 years. Members commencing
service on or after July 1, 2011 or members who have nonvested status as of January 1, 2012 can receive a retirement allowance
at age 52.5 with 25 years of service or age 60. The benefit shall be equal to 2% of AFC times creditable service up to 42.5 years.
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However, a member who commenced service on or after July 1, 2011 shall not receive a retirement allowance until attaining the
age of 52.5, but may receive a reduced allowance after age 50 if the member has at least 25 years of creditable service where the
allowance shall be reduced, for each month by which the member attains 52.5 years of age by Y of 1% or age 60.

Members of both groups may qualify for vested deferred allowances, disability allowances and death benefit allowances, subject
to meeting various eligibility requirements. Benefits are based on AFC or earnable compensation and/or service.

Contributions: The System is financed by contributions from both the employees and the District. Member contribution rates
are established and may be amended by the State legislature while employer contribution rates are set by the System trustees
based on an actuarial valuation. Group I members are required to contribute 7% of earnable compensation. For fiscal year 2020,
the District contributed 10.88% for other employees. The contribution requirement for the fiscal year 2020 was $103,969, which
was paid in full.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions — At June 30, 2020 the District reported a liability of $1,149,550 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based
on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating towns and school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the District’s proportion was 0.02389094%
which was an increase of 0.0010888% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $148,561. At June 30, 2020 the District reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Changes in proportion $ 43,154 $ 15526

Changes in assumptions 41,245 -
Net difference between projected and actual investment

earnings on pension plan investments - 9,390

Differences between expected and actual experience 6,356 24,719

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 109,780 -

Total $ 200,535 $ 49,635

The $109,780 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from the District contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30,

2021 $ 41,439
2022 (18,835)
2023 7,590
2024 10,926
Totals $ 41,120

Actuarial Assumptions — The collective total pension liability was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions which, accordingly, apply to 2018 measurements:

Inflation: 2.50%
Salary increases: 5.60% average, including inflation
Investment rate of return: 7.25% net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
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Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 employee generational mortality tables for males and females, adjusted for mortality
improvements using Scale MP-2015, based on last experience study.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of the most recent actuarial experience
study, which was for the period July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2015.

Long—term Rates of Return — The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investment was selected from a best
estimate range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected future real return range is
calculated separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rate of return net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. Following is a table presenting target allocations and long-term rates of return for 2019:

Weighted average long-term

Target expected real rate of return
Asset Class Allocation 2019
Large Cap Equities 22.50% 4.25%
Small/Mid Cap Equities 7.50% 4.50%
Total domestic equity 30.00%
Int'l Equities (unhedged) 13.00% 4.50%
Emerging Int'l Equities 7.00% 6.00%
Total international equity 20.00%
Core Bonds 9.00% 1.12%
Global Multi-Sector Fixed Income 10.00% 2.46%
Absolute Return Fixed Income 6.00% 1.50%
Total fixed income 25.00%
Private equity 10.00% 7.90%
Private debt 5.00% 4.86%
Total alternative investments 15.00%
Real estate 10.00% 3.00%

Total 100.00%

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the collective total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that
employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the
member rate. For purposes of the projection, member contributions and employer service cost contributions are projected based
on the expected payroll of current members only. Employer contributions are determined based on the Pension Plan’s actuarial
funding policy as required by RSA 100-A:16. Based on those assumptions, the Pension Plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on Pension Plan investment was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
collective total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The following
table presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.25% as well as
what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower (6.25%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.25%) than the current rate:

Current Single

Measurement 1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
Date 6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
June 30, 2019 $ 1,539,294 $ 1,149,550 $ 827,429
18
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued New Hampshire Retirement System Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan financial
report.

NOTE 11 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

11-A New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS)

Plan Description — The New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS or the System) administers a cost-sharing multiple-
employer other postemployment benefit plan medical subsidy healthcare plan (OPEB Plan). For additional system information,
please refer to the 2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which can be found on the system’s website at www.nhrs.org.

Benefits Provided - Benefit amounts and eligibility requirements for the OPEB Plan are set by state law (RSA 100-A:52, RSA
100-A:52-a and RSA 100-A:52-b), and members are designated in statute by type. The four membership types are Group 1I,
Police Officers and Firefighters; Group I, Teachers; Group I, Political Subdivision Employees; and Group I, State Employees.
The OPEB Plan provides a medical insurance subsidy to qualified retired members. The medical insurance subsidy is a payment
made by NHRS to the former employer or its insurance administrator toward the cost of health insurance for a qualified retiree,
his/her qualified spouse, and his/her certified dependent children with a disability who are living in the household and being
cared for by the retiree. If the health insurance premium amount is less than the medical subsidy amount, then only the health
insurance premium amount will be paid. If the health insurance premium amount exceeds the medical subsidy amount, then the
retiree or other qualified person is responsible for paying any portion that the employer does not pay.

Group I benefits are based on creditable service, age and retirement date. Group II benefits are based on hire date, age and
creditable service. The OPEB plan is closed to new entrants.

Maximum medical subsidy rates paid during fiscal year 2019 were as follows:

For qualified retirees not eligible for Medicare, the amounts were $375.56 for a single-person plan and $751.12 for a
two-person plan.

For those qualified retirees eligible for Medicare, the amounts were $236.84 for a single-person plan and $473.68 for a
two-person plan.

Contributions — The OPEB Plan is funded by allocating to the 401(h) subtrust the lessor of: 25% of all employer contributions
made in accordance with RSA 100-A:16 or the percentage of employer contributions determined by the actuary to be the
minimum rate necessary to maintain the benefits provided under RSA 100-A:53-b, RSA 100-A:53-c, and RSA 100-A:53-d. For
fiscal year 2018, the minimum rates determined by the actuary to maintain benefits were the lesser of the two options and were
used to determine the employer contributions due to the 401(h) subtrust. The State Legislature has the authority to establish,
amend and discontinue the contribution requirements of the OPEB Plan. Administrative costs are allocated to the OPEB Plan
based on fund balances. For fiscal year 2020, the District contributed 0.29% for other employees. The contribution requirement
for the fiscal year 2020 was $2,815, which was paid in full.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB — At
June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability of $27,043 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability. The net OPEB
liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on a projection of the
District’s long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating towns and
school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the District’s proportion was 0.00616838% which was an increase of
0.00027007% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.
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For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized OPEB expense of $4,698. At June 30, 2020, the District reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Changes in proportion $ 131 $

Net difference between projected and actual investment

earnings on OPEB plan investments - 30
Differences between expected and actual experience - 47
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,926 -
Total $ 3,057 $ 77

The $2,926 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB results from the District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30,
2021 $ 64
2022 (20)
2023 2
2024 8
Totals $ 54

Actuarial Assumptions — The total OPEB liability in this report is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2018
and a measurement date of June 30, 2019. The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions
applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Price inflation: 2.50% per year
Wage inflation: 3.25% per year
Salary increases: 5.60% average, including inflation

Investment rate of return: 7.25% net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation
Health care trend rate: Not applicable, given that the benefits are fixed stipends

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 healthy annuitant and employee generational mortality tables for males and females
with credibility adjustments, adjusted for fully generational mortality improvements using Scale MP-2015, based on last
experience study.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of the most recent actuarial experience
study, which was for the period July 1, 2010 — June 30, 2015.

Long—term Rates of Return — The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investment was selected from a best estimate
range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected future real return range is calculated
separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rate of return net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation.
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Following is a table presenting target allocations and long-term rates of return for 2019:

Weighted average long-term

Target expected real rate of return
Asset Class Allocation 2019
Large Cap Equities 22.50% 4.25%
Small/Mid Cap Equities 7.50% 4.50%
Total domestic equity 30.00%
Int'l Equities (unhedged) 13.00% 4.50%
Emerging Int'l Equities 7.00% 6.00%
Total international equity 20.00%
Core Bonds 9.00% 1.12%
Global Multi-Sector Fixed Income 10.00% 2.46%
Absolute Return Fixed Income 6.00% 1.50%
Total fixed income 25.00%
Private equity 10.00% 7.90%
Private debt 5.00% 4.86%
Total alternative investments 15.00%
Real estate 10.00% 3.00%

Total 100.00%

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2019 was 7.25%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made under the current statute RSA
100-A:16 and that plan member contributions will be made under RSA 100-A:16. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB Plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on OPEB Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
collective total OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The following table
presents the District’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.25% as well as what the
District’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point
lower (6.25%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.25%) than the current rate:

Current Single

Measurement 1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
Date 6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
June 30, 2019 $ 29,332 $ 27,043 $ 25,054

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued New Hampshire Retirement System Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan financial
report.

11-B Merrimack Village District Retiree Health Benefit Program

Plan Description — GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, requires governments to account for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) on an accrual basis, rather than on a pay-
as-you-go basis. The effect is the recognition of an actuarially determined expense on the Statement of Activities when a future
retiree earns their postemployment benefits, rather than when they use their postemployment benefit. The postemployment
benefit liability is recognized on the Statement of Net Position over time.
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Benefits Provided — The District provides medical benefits to its eligible retirees. The benefits are provided through fully insured
plans that are sponsored by a state-wide health insurance consortium. Retirees are required to continue to pay 100% of the cost of
the medical premium. This valuation does not account for the cost of benefits to retirees or their spouses after age 65.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms — As of July 1, 2019, 16 active employees were covered by the benefit terms.

Total OPEB Liability — The District’s total OPEB liability of $198,001 was measured as of June 30, 2020, and was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs —~ The total OPEB liability of $198,001 in the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:

Discount Rate: 2.21%
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates:
Current Year Trend 0.90%
Second Year Trend 9.50%
Decrement 0.50%
Ultimate Trend 5.00%
Year Ultimate Trend is Reached 2030
Salary Increases: 3.00%

The discount rate was based on the index provided by Bond Buyer 20-Bond General Obligation Index based on the 20-year AA
municipal bond rate as of June 30, 2020.

Mortality rates were based on the SOA RP-2014 Total Dataset Mortality with Scale MP-2019 (Base Year 2006).

Significant Changes from the Previous Actuarial Valuation
e  Decreasing the discount rate from 3.58% to 2.21%.
e Trend rates were advanced, and the current year trend rate was adjusted to reflect actual experience.

e  Mortality assumption changed from RP-2000 Projected 10 Years using Projection Scale AA to SOA RP-2014 Total
Dataset Mortality with Scale MP-2019 (Base Year 2006).

e Morbidity factors were adjusted to reflect rates that better reflect expected underlying costs.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

June 30,
2019 2020

OPEB liability beginning of year $ 129,080 $ 134,514
Changes for the year:

Service cost 7,176 12,440

Interest 4,600 4,042

Assumption changes and difference between

actual and expected experience (5,171) 49,716

Benefit payments (1,171) (2,711)

OPEB liability end of year § 134,514 $§ 198,001
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MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2020

Sensitivity of the District’s OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation was
prepared using a discount rate of 2.21%. If the discount rate were 1% higher than what was used the OPEB liability would
decrease to $187,656 or by 5.22%. If the discount rate were 1% lower than what was used the OPEB liability would increase to
$207,932 or by 5.02%.

Discount Rate
1% Decrease Baseline 2.21% 1% Increase
Total OPEB Liability $ 207,932 $ 198,001 $ 187,656

Sensitivity of the District’s OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates — The July 1, 2019 actuarial
valuation was prepared using an initial trend rate of 0.90%. If the trend rate were 1% higher than what was used the OPEB
liability would increase to $219,873 or by 11.05%. If the trend rate were 1% lower than what was used the OPEB liability would
decrease to $178,484 or by 9.86%.

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates
1% Decrease Baseline 0.90% 1% Increase
Total OPEB Liability $ 178,484 $ 198,001 $ 219,873

OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB — For the year ended
June 30, 2020, the District recognized OPEB expense of $24,176. At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Changes in assumptions $ 39,399 $
Differences between expected and actual experience 1,862 7,714
Total $ 41,261 § 7,714

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in
OPEB expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30,

2021 $ 7,694
2022 7,694
2023 7,694
2024 7,694
2025 6,680

Thereafter (3,909)
Totals W
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MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 12 — BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES NET POSITION
Net position reported on the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2020 include the following:

Net investment in capital assets:

Net book value, all capital assets $ 22,861,692
Less:
General obligation bonds payable (5,570,339)
Unamortized bond premiums (58.206)
Non-capital related debt 315.000
Non-capital related premiums 4,155
Total net investment in capital assets 17,552,302
Restricted net position:
Unspent bond proceeds 646,181
Inventory 113,152
Encumbered 86,703
Total restricted net position 846,036
Unrestricted 6,958,905
Total net position $ 25,357,243

NOTE 13 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors or omissions;
injuries to employees; or natural disasters. During fiscal year 2020, the District was a member of the New Hampshire Public
Risk Management Exchange (Primex®) Workers” Compensation and Property/Liability Programs.

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex®) Workers’ Compensation and Property/Liability Programs are
pooled risk management programs under RSAs 5-B and 281-A. Coverage was provided from July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 by
Primex?, which retained $2,000,000 of each workers’ compensation loss, $500,000 of each liability loss, and $200,000 of each
property loss. The Board has decided to self-insure the aggregate exposure and has allocated funds based on actuarial analysis
for that purpose. The workers’ compensation section of the self-insurance membership agreement permits Primex® to make
additional assessments to members should there be a deficiency in contributions for any member year, not to exceed the
member’s annual contribution. GASB Statement No. 10 requires members of a pool with a sharing risk to disclose if such an
assessment is probable, and a reasonable estimate of the amount, if any. In fiscal year 2020 the District paid $27,818 and
$13,571 respectively, to Primex for property, liability and worker’s compensation. At this time, Primex> foresees no likelihood
of any additional assessment for this or any prior year.

The District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 14 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are various legal claims and suits pending against the District which arose in the normal course of the District’s activities.
In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these various claims and suits will not have a material effect on the
financial position of the District.

The District participates in various federal grant programs, the principal of which are subject to program compliance audits
pursuant to the Single Audit Act as amended. Accordingly, the District’s compliance with applicable grant requirements will be
established at a future date. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be
determined at this time, although the District anticipates such amounts, if any, will be immaterial.

Environmental Remediation — Low concentrations of certain perfluorinated chemicals (PFC’s) have been detected in the
Merrimack Village District water system. The Merrimack Village District is served by groundwater pumped from six wells in
sand and gravel deposits. The source of these PFC’s is most likely airborne contamination originating from an industry in the
northeast portion of the Town of Merrimack. The contaminants were then carried by precipitation or runoff into the aquifers.
The primary contaminant is perfluorooctanoic acid or PFOA.
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MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2020

New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services (NHDES) has an ongoing investigation into the presence of
perfluorochemicals (PFCs) in drinking water in the Towns of Merrimack and Litchfield, New Hampshire. The investigation was
initiated in 2016, when Saint-Gobain Performance Plastics (SGPP) notified NHDES that perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) was
detected at low levels [0.03 micrograms per liter (ug/L) or 30 parts per trillion] in samples taken from four water faucets within
their Merrimack facility, which is served by the Merrimack Village District.

To provide Americans, including the most sensitive populations, with a margin of protection from a lifetime of exposure to
PFOA and PFOS from drinking water, EPA has established the health advisory levels at 70 parts per trillion (ppt). After a
review and comment period, NHDES has set an Ambient Groundwater Quality Standard for PFOA and PFOS at 70 ppt
combined making it enforceable not just advisory. Merrimack Village District signed a settlement agreement with SGPP on
May 1, 2018 for $4,323,000 to cover design, construction and operations expenses through the first five years online for the
water treatment plant at Wells numbers 4 and 5 and expenses incurred to the date of the settlement.

See breakdown of settlement agreement payouts from SGPP:

Wells #4 & #5 Treatment Plant - Design and Construction $ 3,350,000
Wells #4 & #5 Treatment Plant - Year 1 Operating Costs 106,900
Wells #4 & #5 Treatment Plant - Year 2 Operating Costs 106,900
Wells #4 & #5 Treatment Plant - Year 3 Operating Costs 106,900
Wells #4 & #5 Treatment Plant - Year 4 Operating Costs 106,900
Wells #4 & #5 Treatment Plant - Year 5 Operating Costs 106,900
Reimburse Costs Related to PFOA Investigation 3/2016 - 8/2017 438,501

$ 4,323,001

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date, but before the financial statements are
issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provided additional evidence about conditions that existed
at the balance sheet date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the financial statements. Nonrecognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the balance sheet date but arose after the
date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through February 5, 2021 the date the June 30, 2020 financial statements
were available to be issued, and the following event occurred that requires recognition or disclosure:

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared, the outbreak of a coronavirus (COVID-19), a
pandemic. In response to the pandemic, the State of New Hampshire’s Governor, issued an order declaring a
state of emergency on March 13, 2020. As a result, economic uncertainties have arisen which could have a
financial impact though such impact is unknown at this time.
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The Note to the Required Supplementary Information — Pension Liability is an integral part of this schedule.
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The Note to the Required Supplementary Information — Pension Liability is an integral part of this schedule.
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MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTE TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
PENSION LIABILITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2020

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and
Schedule of District Contributions - Pensions

As required by GASB Statement No. 68, and as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Exhibits D and E represent the actuarial
determined costs associated with the District’s pension plan at June 30, 2020. These schedules are presented to illustrate the
requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those
years for which information is available.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates for Fiscal Year 2019:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage-of-Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 21 years beginning July 1, 2018 (30 years beginning July 1, 2009)

Asset Valuation Method S-year smooth market for funding purposes

Price Inflation 2.50% per year

Wage Inflation 3.25% per year

Salary Increases 5.60% Average, including inflation

Municipal Bond Rate 3.13% per year

Investment Rate of Return 7.25% per year

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition. Last

updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2010-2015.

Mortality RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant and Employee generational mortality tables for males and
females, adjusted for mortality improvements using Scale MP -2015, based in the last
experience study.

Other Information:

Notes Contribution rates for Fiscal Year 2019 were determined based on the benefit changes
adopted under House Bill No. 2 as amended by 011-2513-CofC.
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Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability

EXHIBIT F
MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE

New Hampshire Retirement System Cost Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

District's proportion of the net OPEB liability

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability (asset)

District's covered payroll

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
OPEB Hability

June 30,
2017 2018 2019 2020
0.004% 0.004% 0.006% 0.006%
$ 20,145 $ 18,391 $ 27,005 $ 27,043
$ 777,827 $ 715,450 $ 869,812 $ 938,353
2.59% 2.57% 3.10% 2.88%
5.21% 7.91% 7.53% 7.75%

The Notes to the Required Supplementary Information — Other Postemployment Benefit Liability is an integral part of this

schedule.
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EXHIBIT G
MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Schedule of District Contributions - Other Postemployment Benefits
New Hampshire Retirement System Cost Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

June 30,
2017 2018 2019 2020

Contractually required contribution $ 2,418 $ 27384 $ 2,609 $ 2815
Contributions in relation to the contractually

required contribution (2,418) (2,384) (2,609) (2,815)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ =
District's covered payroll $ 777,827 $ 715,450 $ 869,812 $ 938,353
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 0.31% 0.33% 0.30% 0.30%

The Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - Other Postemployment Benefit Liability is an integral part of this
schedule.
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EXHIBIT H
MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Schedule of Changes in the District's Total Other Postemployment Benefits Liability and Related Ratios
Retiree Health Benefit Program
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

June 30,
2017 2018 2019 2020

OPEB liability, beginning of year $ - $ 122,595 $ 129,080 $ 134,514
Changes for the year:

Service cost - 6,967 7,176 12,440

Interest - 4,375 4,600 4,042

Assumption changes and difference between actual

and expected experience - (4,065) (5,171) 49,716

Benefit payments - (792) (1,171) (2,711)
OPEB liability, end of year $ 122,595 $ 129,080 $ 134,514 $ 198,001
Covered payroll $ 847,510 $ 872,935 $ 872,935 $ 982,750
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 14.47% 14.79% 15.41% 20.15%

The Notes to the Required Supplementary Information — Other Postemployment Benefit Liability is an integral part of this

schedule.
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MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION —
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS LIABILITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2020

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability and
Schedule of District Contributions — Other Postemployment Benefits

As required by GASB Statement No. 75, Exhibits F and G represent the actuarial determined costs associated with the District’s
other postemployment benefits at June 30, 2020. These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirement to show information
for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is
available.

There were no changes to benefit terms or assumptions in the current actuarial valuation report.

Methods and Assumptions:
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level Percentage-of-Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period ~ Not applicable under statutory funding

Asset Valuation Method S-year smooth market: 20% corridor

Price Inflation 2.50% per year

Wage Inflation 3.25% per year

Salary Increases 5.60% Average, including inflation

Municipal Bond Rate 3.13% per year

Investment Rate of Return 7.25% per year, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation for determining

solvency contributions.

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition. Last
updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2010-20135.

Mortality RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant and Employee generational mortality tables for males and
females with credibility adjustments, adjusted for fully generational mortality improvements
using Scale MP-2015, based on the last experience study.

Schedule of Changes in District’s Total Other Postemployment Benefits Liability and Related Ratios

As required by GASB Statement No. 75, Exhibit H represents the actuarial determined costs associated with the District’s other
postemployment benefits at June 30, 2020. The schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10
years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is
available.
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MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT
LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULE

JUNE 30, 2020
Acct #30150 Acct # 30735 Acct # 30740 Acct # 30013
2002 2011 2011 2016
Bean Road New Well Continental Blvd Well 7&8
Main Line Development Main Line Treatment Facility
Bonds - 02B Bond - 10D Bond - 10B DWSRF Loan TOTAL
$1,500,000 $835,000 $2,800,000 $4,300,000
4.45% /20 Yr Term | 3.61% /15 Yr Term (3.8248% /20 Yr Term| 1.96% /20 Yr Term
Year End June 30 | P /1
2021( P 75,000.00 55,000.00 130,000.00 191,393.22 451,393.22
1 9,375.00 12,000.00 63,322.00 70,566.65 155,263.65
2022 P 75,000.00 55,000.00 130,000.00 195,144.52 455,144.52
1 5,625.00 7,243.00 52,546.00 66,815.35 132,229.35
2023( P 75,000.00 55,000.00 130,000.00 198,969.36 458,969.36
I 1,875.00 5,043.00 46,046.00 62,990.51 115,954.51
2024 P 50,000.00 130,000.00 202,869.16 382,869.16
I 2,012.00 39,546.00 59,090.71 100,648.71
2025 P 50,000.00 130,000.00 206,845.39 386,845.39
1 1,175.00 33,046.00 55,114.48 89,335.48
2026 P 50,000.00 130,000.00 210,899.56 390,899.56
1 88.00 26,546.00 51,060.31 77,694.31
2027 P 130,000.00 215,033.19 345,033.19
1 20,208.50 46,926.68 67,135.18
2028| P 130,000.00 219,247.84 349,247.84
I 14,033.50 42,712.03 56,745.53
2029 P 130,000.00 223,545.10 353,545.10
I 7,696.00 38,414.77 46,110.77
2030( P 130,000.00 227,926.59 357,926.59
1 1,192.00 34,033.28 35,225.28
2031 P 130,000.00 232,393.95 362,393.95
1 3,250.00 29,565.92 32,815.92
2032 P 236,948.87 236,948.87
I 25,011.00 25,011.00
2033 P 241,593.07 241,593.07
I 20,366.80 20,366.80
2034) P 246,328.29 246,328.29
I 15,631.58 15,631.58
2035 P 251,156.32 251,156.32
I 10,803.55 10,803.55
2036f P 300,045.00 300,045.00
I 5,880.88 5,880.88
Principal P 225,000.00 315,000.00 1,430,000.00 3,600,339.43 5,570,339.43
Interest I 16,875.00 27,561.00 307,432.00 634,984.50 986,852.50

TOTAL PRINCIPAL & INTEREST 6,557,191.93

* The bond interest rates listed are the true interest costs over the term of the bonds. The rates are variable from 3% to 5% over the term of the bonds.
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WELLS 4 & 5 TREATMENT FACILITY
CONSTRUCTION

Wells 4 & 5 PFAS Treatment Facility

Funds Provided by NH Drinking Water & Groundwater Trust Fund
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DEMOLITION & SITE WORK
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DEMOLITION & SITE WORK
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DEMOLITION & SITE WORK

MVD 2020 Annual Report - Page 82



DEMOLITION & SITE WORK
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DEMOLITION & SITE WORK
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DEMOLITION & SITE WORK
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COMPLETED PROJECT - EXTERIOR
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COMPLETED PROJECT - INTERIOR
(Virtual tour of interior available to view at www.mvdwater.org)
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SECTION V:
WARRANT AND BUDGET



MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT

Warrant

To the inhabitants of the Merrimack Village District in the Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire
qualified to vote in District affairs:

You are hereby notified to meet in the All-Purpose Room of the James Mastricola Upper
Elementary School at 26 Baboosic Lake Road in said District on the 30" day of March 2021 at
7:00 PM to act upon the following:

ARTICLE 1: To choose two (2) Commissioners for a three-year (3) term of office.
{Written ballot vote required)

ARTICLE 2: To see if the Merrimack Village District will vote to change the office of District
Treasurer from an elected position to an appointed position in accordance with RSA 41:26-¢.
Such appointment shall be made in accordance with RSA 669:17-d by the Board of
Commissioners. The appointment shall be made in writing and shall include the compensation to
be paid. Should this article pass Article 3 will be null and void. (Majority vote required)

Recommended by the Board of Commissioners (3-0-0)

Reviewed by the Department of Revenue Administration

ARTICLE 3: To choose one (1) Treasurer for a three-year (3) term of office.

(Written ballot vote required)

ARTICLE 4: To see if the Merrimack Village District will vote to raise and appropriate the
sum of four million four hundred seventy-two thousand two hundred sixty-three dollars
($4.472,263) for general municipal operations for the 2021-2022 fiscal year with said sum to
come from water related charges. This article does not include appropriations contained in
special or individual articles addressed separately. (Majority vote required)

Recommended by the Board of Commissioners (3-0-0)

Reviewed by the Department of Revenue Administration

ARTICLE 5: Shall the Merrimack Village District vote to establish a contingency fund, pursuant
to RSA 52:4-a, by raising and appropriating the amount of twenty thousand dollars ($20,000) to
meet the cost of unanticipated expenses that may arise during the fiscal year 2021-2022 with said
funds to come from water related charges? (Majority vote required)

Recommended by the Board of Commissioners (3-0-0)

Reviewed by the Department of Revenue Administration
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ARTICLE 6: Shall the Merrimack Village District vote to establish a Non-Capital Reserve Fund
under provisions of RSA 35:1-c, for the purpose of emergency water and/or the operations and
maintenance of GAC Treatment facilities, and raise and appropriate the sum of one hundred
thousand dollars ($100,000) to be placed in this fund. This sum to come from unassigned fund
balance. Further, to appoint the Board of Commissioners as agents to expend from this Non-
Capital Reserve Fund. (Majority vote required.)

Recommended by the Board of Commissioners (3-0-0)
Reviewed by the Department of Revenue Administration

ARTICLE 7: Shall the Merrimack Village District vote to raise and appropriate the sum of two
hundred forty-eight thousand one hundred sixty-two dollars ($248,162) under provisions of RSA
35:1, I and Il to add to the District’s “System Development Capital Reserve” fund for the future
system expansion and improvement of the existing system? This sum to come from the fiscal year
2019-2020 unassigned fund balance; these are the system development charges collected during
the 2019-2020 budget year. (Majority vote required.)

Recommended by the Board of Commissioners (3-0-0)
Reviewed by the Department of Revenue Administration

ARTICLE 8: Shall the Merrimack Village District vote to raise and appropriate the sum of one
hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) under provisions of RSA 35:1, I and II to add to the District’s
“Equipment and Facilities Capital Reserve” fund for associated costs with existing storage,
transmission and production of water? This sum to come from unassigned fund balance. (Majority
vote required.)

Recommended by the Board of Commissioners (3-0-0)
Reviewed by the Department of Revenue Administration

A true copy of WARRANT — attest Board of Commissioners this date of _oZ/2/5% 2021.

( L'“ﬂ,ﬂ,éa (\ ,OJ’Q’GNW./M\

Donald P10venche1 Chairman

Wolfram von Schoen, Vice Chairman

A » 7
il G ——
Kenneth Ayers

Ve

/Paul McLaughlin

John Lyons
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 5CB58B83-6E03-45B3-93AF-E41C7214C92A

New Hampshire 2021 *
Department of 5
Revenue Administration | MS-636

~ Proposed Budget
Merrimack Vlllage

For the period beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022
Form Due Date 20 Days after the Annual Meetmg '

This form was posted with the warrant on: M ’5 203 (

GOVERNING BODY CERTIFICATION
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined the information contained in this form and to the best
of my belief it is true, correct and complete.

S ... SR, . ....... L .
_W_m_DonaId Provencher W__Chalrman [Dmu Pmmhw

AN — B

_Vice C Chalrman Eu;m vonSecbotn

Wolfram von Schoen o

S 58 L RN mswﬂ
Kenneth Ayers _Commissioner

e wmm
John Lyons Comm|331oner

71C1§i‘0€ ENM
_ Paul McLaughIm Jr e ‘g_pn"_t_mlssmner Pt =7,,rw4.‘ O

This form must be signed, scanned, and uploaded to the Municipal Tax Rate Setting Portal:
https://www.proptax.org/

For assistance please contact:
NH DRA Municipal and Property Division
(603) 230-5090
http://iwww.revenue.nh.gov/mun-prop/

‘3‘0! fuﬁ' e <V1ﬁ

{/{‘/ilzsmm a3t E“ )/f i‘
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DocuSign Envelope 1B 5CB58B83-6E03-4583- 93AF~E4107214092A

New Hampshire
Department of
Revenue Administration

2021
MS-636

Appropriations
Expenditures for  Appropriations
period ending for period ending  Proposed Approprlations for period
Account Purpose , Articl BRoR00 | efawz0z1 e, S0OING 81302022

(Recommendgd) (th Recommended_)

Colleotive Bargalning % s0 80 %0
4130 4139 Execullve $0 o $0 ) %0

" 4140- 4149 Electlon Regmlrallon and V|tal Statlsttcs , %0 % 50 $0

w4150 4151 Fmanmal Adrnmlstratlon %0 o - $0 - $0
T Revaluauon of Propéﬂ;tyww e s e e o m$0 . $O .. $0
R Legal Exper\se $0 R . ‘, . $0 - $0
41554159 PersomelAdminisration s 80 %0 %

4161-4193 _ Planning and Zoring .. I - : 0
4194

General Governmel Bu|1 i

4197 . Advemsing and Reglonal Assoc|auon e o o e e S o $0 e e $0 - S $0
4198 Olher General Government 50 $20,000 $0 $9
GeneraE Govemment Sublota! $0 $20,000 $0 $0

| N $0 $0
4215 4219 Ambulance 5C

. 4220 4229 p"-e . . - 50 e e B $0 s s

4240 4249 h Bull.dmg Inspecuqn 50

4290 4298 Emergency Management 3G
4299 Olher (Inciudlng Communlcatlons) 80
Public Safety Subtotal $0

AlrportlAwatlon Cenler

430? 4309 A|rp0rt0perahons e AP b A T et ¢ $0$0 $0 $0
. " A;rporUAv|at;§n center Subtotal $0 [ $u $0 e e e $0
Hrghways and Streets

pes Adm|n|safat.gn w0 e $D $G B $0
. 4312.__, nghways and Streets A A e 1 $0 s $D S $0 I $0
.....4313 T Bndges $0 e $D $t} e $0
. ,431 6 R Street ngmmg e e e b it st $0 N $0_ —— $G $0
4319 Other e R e $0 $0 et $G e e $0
[ nghwaysanE{StreetsSubto tal e R b $0 . $D$0 st e s $0

1T XBEAG PR - 'Page 20f 9
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DocuSign Envelope ID:; 5CR58B83-6E03-45B3-! 93AF—E41C?214C92A

New Hampshire
Department of
Revenue Administration

2021
MS-636

e AT

.M,MW.W,.;,

~ Appropriations

Expenditures for App}bpriaiidhsm
period ending for period ending Proposed Appropriations for period
Account _Purpose oo Article 6902020 eRwR021 | ending 630/2022

(Recommended) (Not Recommended)

g
T MSoIldWaSte T B S R
R S e T e e e g
i o saision o e

 Sanitation Subtotal

4323 Solig Waste Collectlon

Water Dlstribution and Treatment ) o ] ) .

4331 Administration “ s 164, 943 51603453  s1680608 S0
«‘.,4332 e S chesh_m e $665 544 e e saeo S
e uWater e s wmmen s
,‘".,4338 55 Wt Gt émd oeher e . el

Water Dlstl’lbutlon and Trealment Sublotai $2,821,102 $3,363,379 $3,715,095 $6

EEeclnc n

4351 4352 NA4dm|n|:5t‘rat10n and Generahon - s %0 0 50
4353 F‘urchase Cosls $0 $0 $0 30
4354 Electrlc Equtpment Mazntanance $0 $0 $0 $0

*4359 uOtherEIectncCosts S $0 . $0 R ”$0 o $G
Electric Subtotal $0 $0 $0 $0

Health _

4411 h Admlnlstrat;on - A ’ S ‘ $0 $0 $0 . $0
4414 Pest Con!rol $0 $0 $0 B0
4415 4419 Heal!h Agencnes Hospltals and Other $0 $0 $0 30

Health Subtotal $0 $0 $0 $0

Welfare S — S ) e A e e TR S P P P . e N i 3 s
4441 4442 Admmlstratlon and Dlrecl Asmsiance $0 $0 $0 30
4444 Enlergovernmemal Welfare Payments 30 $0 $0 $C

‘ 4445 4449 : Vendor Payments anci Other %0 $0 $0 %0
Weifare Subtotal $0 $0 $0 50

Cul!ure and Recreatlon e
4520 4529 Pa{ks and Recreallon ] ]

4550 4559 Labrary

$0
4583 Patnot:c F’urposes $0
4589 Olher Cultﬁre and Recreatlon $0

N Cuimre am; Recreaﬂon subgotm - s 5 P o y $0 i sg

v Wikaon /!?/ BASLERE B Y

Pége 30f9
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New Hampshtre
Department of :
Revenue Administration

=
o8
onN
(o]
(=2}

Approprlatlons

Expenditures for  Appropriations
period ending for period ending  Proposed Appropriations for period
Account _ Purpose o Aticle 6302020 | 680/2021 - ending 6/3012022

B ... [Recommended) (Not Recommended)
(c&%ewag;on aquDeveEopn;ent et R A o o : . o b o
4611-4612 .gdmlmslratmn and Purchastng o!’ Natural 30 30
4651“4659 a Economlc Devel(}pment* $0 s e $O e e $0 $O
RSt ‘conservatl;t{"and'Be;‘\f;lopmentSubtotar $o $0 $0 su

04 saarn4 M$451 393” - $503 935 50
4721 Long Term Bonds and Notes In!erest 04 $171 393 $155 264 $166 233 B $0
4723 Tax Anhcspallon Notes - nterest $0 $0 $0 80

4‘,;964?99 omer Deb[ Semce | $0 T $0 $0 $0
Debt Servsce Subtotal $619,107 $606,657 $BTO 168 $0

Capital Outlay ] o ] -

4901 Land ) 50 50 50 50

a2 Machlf{er};, Vehzc!es and Equspmem 04 $73 423 o $i47 ooom "wm$a? 000 T e
_ 4903 » Bmtdmgs $11 63{) ] $0 - ${) - %0

4909 Improvements Other !han Bulldmgs $0 $0 $0 ‘ ‘ . $0
Capitat Outlay Subtotai $85,053 $147,000 $87,000 $0

_Operating Transfers Out e e e e e e s e .
4912 To Speccal Revenue Fund $0 ) §0 $0 $0

4913 ToCapllaIPrOJectsFund o - $0 7 $0 . $0 $C

4914A To Propneié“ry Fund - Airport ' $0 $b $U S $0
4914E To Pfopﬂetary Fund Electrlc 30 $0 $0 $0
49140 To Propnetary Fﬁnd O!her 7 $0 $0 $0 , $0

.49148 . To Eroetaty Fund Sewer . : . $0 $0 e $0 | ...$0,
W4914W To F'rcprletary Fund Waier S §0 ‘ $0 . $0 o $0
4918 To Non Expendabza Trusg Funds s s et e e $0 $(} $0 . $0
Operatmg Transfers Out Subtotalq $0

o Fld mary Funds

'Total Operating BudgetApproprratrons . ) . . E $4,472,263 - $0

Page 40f9
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DocuSigh Envelope ID: 5CB58B83-6E03-45B3-03AF-E41C7214C02A

/ New Hampshire 2021
% : Department of
Revenue Administration Q MS-636

i

ST
TP

[E———

Special Warrant Articles 7
Proposed Appropriations for period

_ ending 6/30/2022

Account ~ Purpose .. Article -

(Recommended} (Not Recommended)
. ToEapllaIReServe und e 0? VS $248162 Sl $G
» Purpose: The MVD's Board of Commissioners adopled a Syslemn
e ToCap[ta|ReserveFund STt Mttt os SRR A A $100'000 et $o
Purpose.: “The purpose of fhis_ article is fo use a ,r:'uodiqn of

otal Proposed Special Articles - $a48.162 $o

W aneat ey o o page50f9
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 5CB58B83-6E03-4583-03AF-E41C7214C92A
/R

VAccrount

4199

New Hampshire i 2021 e
Department of 7 MS 636

Revenue Administration |

e

Individual Warrant Articles
Proposed Appropriations for period
Purpose o AtiGle e, SNGiNG 6130/2022

. _ {Recommendied) (Not Recommended)

Other General Government s T $20,000 $0
Purpose: RSA 52:4-a stales:"Every village district annually

"To Capital Reserve Fund 06 Tgi00000 80

Purpose: To eslabiish a Non-Capital Reserve Fund

Total Proposed individual Articles ' ©os120000 00 S0

Pége' 6of9
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DocuSign Envelope 1D: 5CR58R83-6E03-45B3-03AF - E41C7214CQZA

New Hampshire
Department of
Revenue Administration

2021
MS-636

R

Revenues

Actual Revenues for Estlmated Revenues for Estimated Revenues for

Account

Source Alft_it;!g )

Taxes

3120 ”Land UseChangeTax General Fund e 0
3180 ResrdentTax ) - e $0 e v,$0 v

T I - |
e remenieime B
S

3187 Excavallon Tax
3189 Olher Taxes

‘W:l:ékxés Subtotal 7 ‘ o $0I

) 3311 3319 From l’—“ederal Govema‘nent

Lacenses Permlts and FeesSubtotaI S 30 $0

3352 ' Meals and Rooms “T'ax D;stnbu!lon ‘ . $0 50

3353 ; inghway B!ock Grant e e v . $0 e $_0
3354 Water Polzutcon Gfant $0 $0

3355 Housmg and Commumly Devetopmenl $0 50 T

' NState and Federal Forest Land '
3356 Re|mbursement $0 $0

'3357 Fiood Controt RetmburSemenl $0
3359 Oiher (Inciudmg Rallroad Tax) _
3379 From Other Governmenls

State Sources Subtotal

450,000 S
3401 3406 lncome ﬁrom Depanments _ 04, 05 $4,285,575
3409 Other Charges 30

Charges for Sennces Sublotat $4,285,575

Mlsceilaneous Revenues

FE
0 S

perlod ending 6/30/2020 peried ending §I3012921 period ending 6/30/2022

_$_.{.).
Bs
-+

50

e

=

o
-

$0

. R

S W

$3,953,038

63,653 035 R

§0

o
-2
et
-3

50
.

-
Ba
50

| $4,349,263
$0
$4,349,263

3501 Sale ofMunlmpal Property . - 7 - A _ $0. R $O g

3502 Interest on Investments 04 $15,875 322 000

' 3503 3509 Other 04

Miscellaneous Revenues Subfotal

" 185,603 '$184,000
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DocuSign Enverope ID: 5CB58B83-6E03-45B3-93AF - E41C7214C92A

New Hampshire
Department of
Revenue Administration

A —

s

Revenues

Actual Revenues for Estimated Revenues for ‘Estimated Revenues for
Account Source - Article __period ending 6/30/2020 period gndln_g 6!30{202_1 per_md ending 6[30!2022

Interfund Operatmg Transfers ln
- $0
o o Capnal Reserve Funds e $0 50 $0

3912 _From Spemal Revenue Funds S o ‘ o | N “s0

7 3913 From Capltai PmJects Funds
391 4A From Enterprlse Funds Alfport {Offset)
3914E From Enterpnse Funds Elecmc (Offsei)

' 39140 From Enlerpnse Funds Other {Offset
39148

From Enlerprlse Fun

3916 From Trust and Flduclary Funds o N o $0 $0 $0
3917 From Conservatlon Funds $0 30 $0

roceeds fmm Long Term Bonds and Notes . R $0 s o $0 . $0
Amoum Voleci frem Fund Balance 07, 08,06 S0 80 $448,162

9909 Fund Balance to Reduce Taxes T T - 30 50

Other Flnancmg Sources Subtoial 7\ . o $0 ' $0 o .$§¥.l48,1éé

Total Estimated Revenues and Credits o T$4.491178 ‘ $4 137 o?sm T Sa,940,425)

1‘10% fident

' Page 80f9
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New Hampshire | 2021
Department of ;
Revenue Administration MS'636

Budget Summary

Period ending

Oporating Bidget Appropriations T Tsaanaaes
 Spedial Warrant Articles e
" pa040.25
.. $4940425

Page 9 of O
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CHECK WATERING RESTRICTIONS
PRIOR TO IRRIGATING/WATERING
LAWNS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFO VISIT WWW.MVDWATER.ORG,
FOLLOW US ON FACEBOOK,
AND SUBSCRIBE TO RECEIVE EMAIL NOTIFICATIONS.




NOTES




Greens Pond - Merrimack, NH




MERRIMACK VILLAGE DISTRICT
THANKS THE RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES
OF MERRIMACK FOR THEIR CONTINUED
SUPPORT

Merrimack Village District
2 Greens Pond Rd
Merrimack, NH 03054

www.mvdwater.org





<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts false
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages false
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Average
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth 8
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /FlateEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages false
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages false
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Average
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth 8
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /FlateEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages false
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages false
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Average
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier (CGATS TR 001)
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName (http://www.color.org)
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /ENU ([Based on 'Papergraphics'] Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents for quality printing on desktop printers and proofers.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        9
        9
        9
        9
      ]
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName (U.S. Web Coated \(SWOP\) v2)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure true
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 6
      /MarksWeight 0.250000
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /UseName
      /PageMarksFile /RomanDefault
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




